SPOKANE AIRPORT BOARD

SPOKANE, WA



BIDDING DOCUMENTS

FOR

GLYCOL RECOVERY VEHICLES

ITB #24-41-1827

APRIL 21, 2024

SPOKANE AIRPORT BOARD

GLYCOL RECOVERY VEHICLES, ITB #24-41-1827

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. BIDDING INFORMATION

Invitation to Bid Instructions to Bidders Special Provisions to Instructions to Bidders

II. BID PROPOSAL

Bidder's Checklist Bid Proposal Form

III. <u>GENERAL CONDITIONS</u>

Sample Contract Summary of Work



INVITATION TO BID

Sealed bids will be received by the Spokane Airport Board at the Spokane International Airport, 9000 West Airport Drive, Suite 204, Spokane, Washington 99224 until Monday, May 6, 2024 at 2:00 PM for:

GLYCOL RECOVERY VEHICLES, ITB#24-41-1827

AT SPOKANE INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

It shall be the duty of each Bidder to submit his/her bid on or before the hour and date specified. Bids will be opened and publicly read aloud at the designated time listed above. Any bids received after the time for opening cannot and will not be considered.

Bidding Documents are available at <u>http://business.spokaneairports.net/bids</u>. Questions during the bid period should be directed to Margaret Merin at mmerin@spokaneairports.net. Bid results (after bid opening) are available on the SIA website at.

A Contract according to the Bidding Documents, Supplementary Conditions, and Addendums (if applicable) shall be signed prior to work commencing.

The Spokane Airport Board reserves the right to reject any or all bids, to waive any informality, to accept any alternate bids, and to make such award that it deems to be in the best interest of the Airport pursuant to the terms of the Instruction to Bidders. The contract will be awarded to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. All bidders are cautioned to be aware of the requirement to have their bids considered responsive.

Spokane International Airport is an Equal Opportunity Employer and encourages Women, Minority, Disadvantaged Business Enterprises, and small businesses to participate in the competitive bidding process.

Publication and dates:

The Spokesman Review: April 21, 24, 28 and May 1, 2024 Posted on-line - Spokane International Airports Website: http://business.spokaneairports.net/bids/

END OF INVITATION TO BID

SPOKANE AIRPORTS PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

Updated March 18, 2024

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1 – DEFINITIONS

ARTICLE 2 - BIDDER'S REPRESENTATIONS

ARTICLE 3 - BIDDING DOCUMENTS

- 3.1 COPIES
- **3.2 INTERPRETATION OR CORRECTION OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS**
- **3.3 PRODUCT SUBSTITUTIONS**
- **3.4 SUBCONTRACTORS**
- 3.5 ADDENDA
- ARTICLE 4 PRE-BID CONFERENCE
- **ARTICLE 5 BIDDING PROCEDURES**
 - 5.1 FORM AND STYLE OF BIDS
 - **5.2 BID SECURITY**
 - 5.3 SUBMISSION OF BIDS
 - 5.4 MODIFICATION OR WITHDRAWAL OF BID
- **ARTICLE 6 CONSIDERATION OF BIDS**
 - 6.1 OPENING OF BIDS
 - 6.2 REJECTION OF BIDS
 - 6.3 AWARD
- **ARTICLE 7 BID PROTEST**
 - 7.1 FILING A BID PROTEST
 - 7.2 RESOLUTION OF BID CONTROVERSY

ARTICLE 1 DEFINITIONS

1.1 Except as otherwise specifically provided in these Instructions to Bidder, definitions set forth in the General Conditions or in other Contract Documents are applicable to all Bidding Documents, including these Instructions to Bidders.

1.2 The term "Addenda" means written or graphic instruments issued by Airport prior to the Bid Deadline, which modify or interpret the Bidding Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, or corrections, and are incorporated into the Bidding Documents.

1.3 The term "Alternate" means a change in the Work proposed by the Airport, as described in the Bidding Documents which, if accepted by the Airport, may result in a change to either the Contract Sum or the Contract Time, or both.

1.4 The term "Bid Deadline" means the date and time on or before which Bids must be received, as designated in the Call for Bids and which may be revised by Addenda.

1.5 The term "Bid Form" means only the forms furnished by the Airport for submission of a Bid.

1.6 The term "Bid Security" is defined in Article 5.2.1 of these Instructions to Bidders.

1.7 The term "Bidder" means a person or firm that submits a Bid.

1.8 The term "Bidding Documents" means the construction documents prepared and issued for bidding purposes including all Addenda thereto.

1.9 The term "Business Day" means any day other than a Saturday, a Sunday, and the holidays specified herein, and to the extent provided herein, if the Facility or applicable office of the Airport is closed for the whole of any day, insofar as the business of that office is concerned, that day shall be considered as a holiday for the purposes of computing time in these Instructions to Bidders.

1.10 The term "Calendar Day" means any day including a Saturday, a Sunday, and the holidays specified herein, if any.

1.11 The term "Contract" means the contract or agreement awarded by the Airport Board of Directors to the lowest responsive, responsible Bidder in connection with the performance of the Project.

1.12 The term "Estimated Quantity" means the estimated quantity of an item of Unit Price Work.

1.13 The term "Facility" means the Airport's office issuing the Bidding Documents.

1.14 The term "Lump Sum Base Bid" means the sum stated in the Bid for which Bidder offers to perform the Work described in the Bidding Documents, but not including Unit Price items or Alternates.

1.15 The term "Planholder" means a person or entity known by the Airport to have received a complete set of Bidding Documents and who has provided a street address for receipt of any written pre-Bid communications.

1.16 The term "Unit Price" means an amount stated in the Bid for which Bidder offers to perform an item of Unit Price Work for a fixed price per unit of measurement.

1.17 The term "Unit Price Work" means any portion of the Project where the quantity and/or price of the Work is an estimate and unable to exact quantification.

ARTICLE 2 BIDDER'S REPRESENTATIONS

2.1 Bidder, by making a Bid, represents, warrants and covenants to the Airport that:

2.1.1 Bidder has read, understood, and made the Bid in accordance with the provisions of the Bidding Documents.

2.1.2 Bidder has visited and carefully examined the Project site and is familiar with the conditions under which the Work is to be performed and the local conditions as related to the requirements of the Contract Documents.

2.1.3 The Bid is based upon the materials, equipment, and systems required by the Bidding Documents without exception.

2.1.4 At the time of submission of the Bid, Bidder and all Subcontractors, regardless of tier, and their respective principals, shall have the appropriate current and active licenses issued by the State of Washington for the Work to be performed, have any licenses specifically required by the Bidding Documents, and certify they are not debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily or involuntarily excluded from participation in this Project by any Federal or State department or agency. Bidder will include this clause without modification in all lower tier transactions, solicitation, proposals, contracts, and subcontracts. Where the Consultant or any lower tier participant is unable to certify to this statement, it shall attach an explanation to this Agreement. If Bidder is a joint venture, at the time of submission of the Bid, Bidder shall have all required licenses in the name of the joint venture itself.

2.1.5 The Airport, in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d to 2000d-4), will affirmatively support any Contract entered into pursuant to this Bid, including Disadvantaged Business Enterprises, will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit Bids in response to this Call for Bids and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in consideration for an Award. Furthermore, the Bidder has read and shall abide by the nondiscrimination requirements contained in the Bidding Documents.

2.1.6 Bidder has the expertise and financial capacity to perform and complete all obligations under the Bidding Documents.

2.1.7 The person executing the Bid Form is duly authorized and empowered to execute the Bid Form on behalf of Bidder.

2.1.8 Bidder is aware of and, if awarded the Contract, will comply with applicable code requirements in its performance of the work.

2.1.9 Bidder has given written notice to Airport of any errors, inconsistencies or ambiguities in the Bidding Documents.

2.1.10 Bidder has made such examination and investigation necessary and is satisfied as to the conditions to be encountered in connection with the Project and the requirements of the Bidding Documents and Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 3 BIDDING DOCUMENTS

3.1 COPIES

3.1.1 Bidders may obtain complete sets of the Bidding Documents from the issuing office designated in the Call for Bids for the fee stated therein

3.1.2 Bidders shall use only a complete set of Bidding Documents in preparing Bids

3.1.3 Airport makes copies of the Bidding Documents available, on the above terms, for the sole purpose of obtaining Bids for the Work and does not confer a license or grant permission for any other use of the Bidding Documents.

3.2 INTERPRETATION OR CORRECTION OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS

3.2.1 Bidder shall, before submitting its Bid, carefully study and compare all components of the Bidding Documents and compare them with any other work being bid concurrently or presently under construction which relates to the Work for which the Bid is submitted; shall examine the Project site, the conditions under which the Work is to be performed, and the local conditions; and shall at once give written notice to Airport's Representative of known or perceived errors, inconsistencies, or ambiguities discovered. If Bidder is awarded the Contract, Bidder waives any claim arising from any errors, inconsistencies or ambiguities, that Bidder, its subcontractors or suppliers, or any person or entity under Bidder on the Contract became aware of, or reasonably should have become aware of, prior to Bidder's submission of its Bid.

3.2.2 Clarifications, interpretations, corrections, and changes to the Bidding Documents will be made by Addenda. Clarifications, interpretations, corrections, and changes to the Bidding Documents made in any other manner shall not be binding and Bidders shall not rely upon them.

3.3 PRODUCT SUBSTITUTIONS

3.3.1 No substitutions of product, material or equipment will be considered prior to award of Contract, if a Contract is awarded. If a Contract is awarded, substitutions of product, material or

equipment will only be considered after award of the Contract and as provided for in the Contract Documents.

3.4 SUBCONTRACTORS

3.4.1 Each Bidder shall list in the Bid Form all first-tier Subcontractors that will perform work or labor. Bidders' attention is directed to the requirements of RCW 39.30.060 as amended, which is incorporated herein by reference; provided, however the Airport requires Bidders to submit as part of the Bid (NOT within one hour after Bid time) the names of subcontractors with whom the Bidder, if awarded the Contract, will subcontract for performance of the work, or to name itself for the work.

The Bid Form contains spaces for the following information when listing Subcontractors: (1) portion of the Work; (2) name of Subcontractor and city of Subcontractor's business location; (3) Contractor Registration No. The failure to list, on the Bid Form, any one of the items set forth above will result in the Airport treating the Bid as if no Subcontractor was listed for that portion of the Work and Bidder will thereby represent to Airport that Bidder agrees that it is fully qualified to perform that portion of the Work and shall perform that portion of the Work.

3.4.2 Subcontractors listed in the Bid Form shall only be substituted after the Bid Deadline with the written consent of Airport and in accordance with fair practices and applicable law.

3.4.3 Failure to comply with any provision of this Article 3.4 shall render a Bid to be nonresponsive.

3.5 ADDENDA

3.5.1 Addenda will be issued only by Airport and only in writing. Addenda will be identified as such and will be delivered to all Bidders on the Planholder List.

3.5.2 Addenda will be available for inspection at the place where the Bidding Documents are on file for inspection.

3.5.3 Addenda will be issued such that Planholders should receive them no later than two full Business Days prior to the Bid Deadline. Addenda withdrawing the request for Bids or postponing the Bid Deadline may be issued anytime prior to the Bid Deadline.

3.5.4 Each Bidder shall be responsible for ascertaining, prior to submitting a Bid, that it has received all issued Addenda.

ARTICLE 4 PRE-BID CONFERENCE

4.1 Bidder shall attend the Pre-Bid Conference at which the requirements of the Bidding Documents are reviewed by Airport, comments and questions are received from Bidders, and a Project site visit is conducted. Airport requires all Pre-Bid Conference attendees to arrive for the meeting on time and to sign an attendance list, which in turn is used to determine if Bidders meet

this requirement. Any Bidder not attending the Pre-Bid Conference will be deemed to have not complied with the requirements of the Bidding Documents and its Bid will be rejected.

ARTICLE 5 BIDDING PROCEDURES

5.1 FORM AND STYLE OF BIDS

5.1.1 Bids shall be submitted only on the Bid Form included with the Bidding Documents and not on any other form or document. Bids not submitted on the Airport's Bid Form shall be rejected.

5.1.2 The Bid Form shall be filled in legibly in ink or by typewriter. All portions of the Bid Form must be completed and the Bid Form must be signed before the Bid is submitted. Failure to comply with the requirements of this Article 5.1.2 will result in the Bid being rejected as nonresponsive.

5.1.3 All blanks on the Bid Form shall be completed. Bidder's failure to submit a price for any Alternate, Unit Price or Bid item, or Bidder's act of leaving any item blank on the Bid Form, will result in the Bid being considered as nonresponsive. If Alternates are called for and no change in the Lump Sum Base Bid is required, the Bidder shall indicate "No Change," "No Bid," or "Not Applicable" by marking the appropriate box.

5.1.4 Bidder shall make no stipulations on the Bid Form nor qualify the Bid in any manner.

5.1.5 The Bid Form shall be signed by a person or persons legally authorized to act on behalf of Bidder. Bidder's Representative shall sign and date the Declaration included in the Bid Form. Failure to sign and date the declaration will cause the Bid to be rejected.

5.2 BID SECURITY

5.2.1 Each Bid shall be accompanied by Bid Security in the amount of 5% of the Bid (including Washington State Sales Tax) as security for Bidder's obligation to enter into a Contract with Airport on the terms stated in the Bid Form and to furnish all items required by the Bidding Documents. Bid Security shall be a Bid Bond or a certified check made payable to "Spokane Airport Board."

5.2.2 If the apparent lowest responsive, responsible Bidder, as determined by the Airport, for any reason fails or refuses to sign the Contract and furnish all items required by the Bidding Documents within the time limits specified in these Instructions to Bidders, Airport may reject such Bidder's Bid and select the next apparent lowest responsible Bidder until all Bids have been exhausted or Airport may reject all Bids. The Bidder whose Bid is rejected for such failure(s) shall be liable for and forfeit to Airport the amount of the difference, not to exceed the amount of the Bid Security, between the amount of the Bid of the Bidder so rejected and the greater amount for which Airport procures the Work.

5.2.3 If a Bid Bond is submitted, the signature of the person executing the Bid Bond must be notarized. If an attorney-in-fact executes the Bid Bond on behalf of the surety, a copy of the

current power of attorney bearing the notarized signature of the appropriate corporate officer shall be included with the Bid Bond. Additionally, the surety issuing the Bid Bond shall be, on the Bid Deadline, identified in the U.S. Department of the Treasury's Circular 570.

5.2.4 Bid Security will be returned after the Contract has been awarded, if a Contact is awarded. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, if a Bidder fails or refuses, within 10 Calendar Days after receipt of Notice of Intent to Award, to sign the Contract or submit to Airport all of the items required by the Bidding Documents, the Airport will retain that Bidder's Bid Security. If the Bid Security is in the form of a Bid Bond, the Bid Security will be retained until the Airport has been appropriately compensated; if the Bid Security is in the form of certified check, the Airport will negotiate said check and after deducting its damages, return any balance to Bidder.

5.3 SUBMISSION OF BIDS

5.3.1 The Bid Form, Bid Security, acknowledgement of addenda, and all other documents required to be submitted with the Bid shall be enclosed in a sealed opaque envelope. The envelope shall be addressed to the office designated in the Call for Bids. The envelope shall be identified with the Project name, Bidder's name and address, and, if applicable, the designated portion of the Project for which the Bid is submitted. If the Bid is sent by mail, the sealed envelope shall be enclosed in a separate mailing envelope with the notation "SEALED BID ENCLOSED" on the face thereof.

5.3.2 Bids shall be deposited at the designated location on or before the Bid Deadline. A Bid received after the Bid Deadline will be returned to Bidder unopened.

5.3.3 Bidder shall assume full responsibility for timely delivery at the location designated for receipt of Bids.

5.3.4 Oral, telephonic, facsimile, or telegraphic Bids are invalid and will not be accepted.

5.4 MODIFICATION OR WITHDRAWAL OF BID

5.4.1 Prior to the Bid Deadline, a submitted Bid may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the Airport. Such notice shall be in writing and signed by an authorized representative of the Bidder and, in order to be effective, must be received on or before the Bid Deadline. A modification so made shall be worded so as not to reveal the amount of the original Bid.

5.4.2 A withdrawn Bid may be resubmitted on or before the Bid Deadline, provided that it then fully complies with the Bidding Requirements.

5.4.3 Bid Security shall be in an amount sufficient for the Bid as modified or resubmitted.

5.4.4 Bids may not be modified, withdrawn, or canceled within 60 Calendar Days after the Bid Deadline unless otherwise provided in Addenda.

ARTICLE 6 CONSIDERATION OF BIDS

6.1 OPENING OF BIDS

6.1.1 Bids which have the required identification as required in Article 5.3.1 and are received on or before the Bid Deadline will be opened publicly. After publicly opening Bids, the Airport will post in a public place at the address where the Bids are received (unless another address is specified in the Bidding Documents) an initial bid matrix that identifies Bidders and their respective Bid. Such initial bid matrix shall not be construed as making any determination regarding whether any Bidder is responsive or responsible.

6.2 REJECTION OF BIDS

6.2.1 Airport will have the right to reject all Bids, for any reason or no reason, anytime prior to award of the Contract.

6.2.2 Airport will have the right to reject any Bid not accompanied by the required Bid Security or any other item required by the Bidding Documents, or a Bid which is in any other way incomplete or materially irregular.

6.3 AWARD

6.3.1 Airport will have the right, but is not required, to waive nonmaterial irregularities in a Bid. If the Airport awards the Contract, it will be awarded to the responsible Bidder submitting the lowest responsive Bid as determined by Airport and who is not rejected by Airport for failing or refusing, within 14 Calendar Days after receipt of Notice of Intent to Award (unless stated otherwise in the Call for Bids), to sign the Contract or submit to Airport all of the items required by the Bidding Documents.

6.3.2 Airport will have the right to accept or reject Alternates in any order or combination, unless otherwise specifically provided in the Bidding Documents. The opening of Bids and evaluation of Alternates will be conducted in accordance with a procedure that, at Airport's option, either (i) prescribes, prior to the time of Bid opening, the order in which Alternates will be selected or (ii) prevents, before the determination of the apparent low Bidder has been made, information that would identify any of the Bidders from being revealed to the representative of the Airport selecting the Alternates to be used in determining the low Bidder.

6.3.3 Airport will determine the low Bidder on the basis of the sum of the Lump Sum Base Bid, or all Unit Prices multiplied by their respective Estimated Quantities as stated in the Bid Form, plus the amounts of all Alternates to be included in the Contract Sum at the time of award. The Contract Sum will be the sum of the Lump Sum Base Bid and the additive or deductive amounts for all Alternates that Airport has selected to be included in the Contract Sum as of the time of award.

6.3.4 Any discrepancy on the Bid Form with the multiplication of any Unit Price and its respective Estimated Quantity will be resolved in favor of the Unit Price. Any discrepancy between words

and numerals, the words shall govern. Any discrepancy on the Bid Form between the indicated sum of any column of figures and the correct sum thereof will be resolved in favor of the correct sum.

6.3.5 Upon determining the apparent lowest responsive and responsible Bidder, the Airport will post the Bid results identifying the lowest responsive and responsible Bidder in a public place at the address where the Bids are received (unless another address is specified in the Bidding Documents).

6.3.6 Airport will select the apparent lowest responsive and responsible Bidder and notify such Bidder within 50 Calendar Days (unless the number of days is modified in Supplementary Instructions to Bidders) after the Bid Deadline or reject all Bids. Within 14 Calendar Days after receipt of Notice of Intent to Award, Bidder shall submit to Airport the following items:

- One original of the Contract signed by Bidder;
- Names of all Subcontractors, with their addresses, telephone number, e-mail address, contact person, portion of the Work and any designation of any Subcontractor as a Small Business Enterprise (SBE), Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE), Women-owned Business Enterprise (WBE), etc.; and
- Any other documents, information or items reasonably required by the Airport.

The following items will be provided by the Bidder at the Pre-Construction Conference, prior to issuance by the Airport of the Notice to Proceed:

- Payment Bond required by the General Conditions;
- Performance Bond required by the General Conditions;
- Certificate of Insurance required by the General Conditions;
- Preliminary Contract Schedule as required by the General Conditions;
- Cost Breakdown as required by the General Conditions; and
- Any other documents, information or items reasonably required by the Airport.

6.3.7 Prior to award of the Contract, Airport will notify Bidder in writing, if Airport, after due investigation, objects to a Subcontractor or Superintendent proposed by Bidder, in which case Bidder shall propose a substitute acceptable to Airport. Substitution of Superintendent shall be made in accordance with Article 3 of the General Conditions. Substitution of a Subcontractor shall be made in accordance with Article 5 of the General Conditions. Failure of Airport to object to a proposed Superintendent or Subcontractor prior to award shall not preclude Airport from requiring replacement of Superintendent or any Subcontractor based upon information received subsequent to award, information which cannot be properly evaluated prior to award due to time constraints, or information relating to a failure to comply with the requirements of the Contract.

6.3.8 If Bidder submits one original of the signed Contract and all other items required to be submitted to Airport within 14 Calendar Days after receipt of Notice of Intent to Award as the apparent lowest responsive and responsible Bidder, and if all such items comply with the requirements of the Bidding Documents and are acceptable to Airport, Airport will award the Contract to Bidder by signing the Contract and returning a signed copy of the Contract to Bidder.

6.3.9 If Airport consents to the withdrawal of the Bid of the apparent lowest responsive and responsible Bidder, or the apparent lowest responsive and responsible Bidder fails or refuses to sign the Contract or submit to Airport all of the items required by the Bidding Documents, within 14 Calendar Days after receipt of Notice of Intent to Award, or that Bidder is not financially or otherwise qualified to perform the Contract, may reject such Bidder's Bid and select the next apparent lowest responsible Bidder, until all Bids are exhausted, or reject all Bids. Any Bidder whose Bid is rejected because the Bidder has failed or refused, within 14 Calendar Days after receipt of Notice of Intent to Award, to sign the Contract or submit to Airport all of the items required by the Bidding Documents, shall be liable to the Airport for all resulting losses, costs, and damages actually incurred by the Airport.

ARTICLE 7 BID PROTEST

7.1 FILING A BID PROTEST

7.1.1 If the Airport selects a responsible Bidder with the lowest responsive Bid, then any Bidder, person, or entity may file a Bid protest with the Airport Project Manager. The protest shall specify the reasons and facts upon which the protest is based and shall be filed in writing with the Airport not later than 2 Business Days after the date of the Final Bid Matrix posting pursuant to Article 6.3.5 of these Instructions to Bidders.

7.1.2 If the Airport selects a responsible Bidder with the lowest responsive Bid and a Bid is rejected by the Airport, and such rejection is not in response to a Bid protest, then any Bidder, person or entity may dispute that rejection by filing a Bid protest (limited to the rejection) within 2 Business Days of the rejection.

7.1.3 By filing a Bid protest, the Bidder represents and warrants that Bidder has not lobbied, discussed, or otherwise engaged in any communications with regards to the Bid protest, and will refrain from the same, with any member of the Airport Board of Directors, Airport Chief Executive Officer, Airport Project Manager, or any other Airport officer, employee or representative. Such lobbying, discussion or communications shall constitute a waiver of Bidder's ability to pursue a Bid protest as set forth in this Article 7.

7.2 RESOLUTION OF BID CONTROVERSY

7.2.1 Airport will investigate the basis for the Bid protest and analyze the facts. Airport will notify Bidder whose Bid is the subject of the Bid protest of evidence presented in the Bid protest and evidence found as a result of the investigation, and, if deemed appropriate, afford Bidder an opportunity to rebut such evidence, and permit Bidder to present evidence that it should be allowed to perform the Work. If deemed appropriate in the sole discretion of the Airport Project Manager, an informal hearing may be held. Airport will issue a written decision within15 Calendar Days following receipt of the Bid protest, unless factors beyond Airport's reasonable control prevent such a resolution, in which event such decision will be issued as expeditiously as circumstances reasonably permit. The decision will state the reasons for the action taken by Airport. A copy of the decision will be furnished to the protestor, the Bidder whose Bid is the subject of the Bid protest, and all Bidders affected by the decision. As used in this Article 7, a Bidder is affected by the decision on a Bid protest if a decision on the protest could have resulted in the Bidder not being the lowest responsible and responsive Bidder for the Contract.

7.2.2 Bidder whose Bid is the subject of the protest, all Bidders affected by the Airport's decision on the protest, and the Bidder who made the protest may appeal the Airport's decision on the protest to the Airport Chief Executive Officer. The appeal must be in writing and shall specify the decision being appealed and all the facts and circumstances relied upon in support of the appeal. If an appeal is made by the Bidder who made the protest, such appeal is limited to only those reasons and facts that were filed in writing pursuant to Article 7.1.1 and such Bidder shall be prohibited raising new, supplemental or additional reasons or facts on appeal. The appeal must be received by close of business not later than 7 Calendar Days following the Airport's transmittal to appellant of Airport's written decision on the protest.

A copy of the appeal shall be sent to all parties involved in the Bid protest and to Airport. An appeal received after close of business is considered received as of the next Business Day. If the final date for receipt of an appeal falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or Airport holiday, the appeal will be considered timely only if received by close of business on the following Business Day.

7.2.3 The Airport Chief Executive Officer will review the Airport's decision and the appeal, and issue a written decision, or if appropriate in the sole discretion of the Airport Chief Executive Officer, appoint a person to conduct a hearing and issue a written decision. If a hearing is held, the hearing shall be held not later than 10 Calendar Days following the appointment of the person unless the person for good cause determines otherwise. The written decision of the person will state the basis of the decision, and the decision will be final and not subject to any further appeal to Airport. The Airport will complete its internal Bid protest procedures before award of the Contract.

END OF INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

SPECIAL PROVISIONS TO INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

The following Special Provisions are modifications to the Instructions to Bidders and apply only to the above-named project.

ARTICLE 2 BIDDER'S REPRESENTATIONS

2.1.2 Bidder is familiar with the conditions under which the product is to be provided and the local conditions as related to the requirements of the Bidding Documents.

ARTICLE 3 BIDDING DOCUMENTS

- 3.4 SUBCONTRACTORS Not Applicable
- 3.5 ADDENDA
- 3.5.1 Addenda will be issued only by Airport and only in writing. Addenda will be identified as such and will be post at <u>http://business.spokaneairports.net/bids</u>.

ARTICLE 4 PRE-BID CONFERENCE

4.1 Not Applicable

ARTICLE 5 BIDDING PROCEDURES

5.2 BID SECURITY - Not Applicable

ARTICLE 6 CONSIDERATION OF BIDS

- 6.1 OPENING OF BIDS
- 6.1.1 Bids which have the required identification as required in Article 5.3.1 and are received on or before the Bid Deadline will be accepted. Bid opening is not public and will occur after the Bid Deadline by Airport Staff. After opening the bids, an initial bid matrix that identifies Bidders and their respective bid will be provided to all bidders via email. Such an initial bid matrix shall not be construed as making any determination regarding whether any Bidder is responsive or responsible.
- 6.3 AWARD
- 6.3.5 Upon determining the apparent lowest responsive and responsible Bidder, the Airport will provide a Notice of Intent to Award via email to all Bidders.
- 6.3.6 Airport will select the apparent lowest responsive and responsible Bidder and notify such Bidder within 50 Calendar Days (unless the number of days is modified in Supplementary Instructions to Bidders) after the Bid Deadline or reject all Bids. Within 14 Calendar Days

after receipt of Notice of Intent to Award, Bidder shall submit to Airport the following items:

- One original of the Contract signed by Bidder; and
- Any other documents, information or items reasonably required by the Airport.

The following items will be provided by the Bidder prior to issuance by the Airport of the Notice to Proceed:

- Preliminary Contract Schedule; and
- Any other documents, information or items reasonably required by the Airport.

6.3.7 Not Applicable

END OF SPECIAL PROVISIONS TO INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

BIDDER'S CHECKLIST

This Bidder's Checklist is provided as a matter of convenience to assist in the preparation of a Bid. It is not intended to be a comprehensive list of all bidding requirements and is not a substitute for the requirements in the Bidding Documents. Use of this Bidder's Checklist does not relieve the Bidder from the responsibility of meeting all requirements of the Bidding Documents related to preparation of a Bid. Failure to submit a Bid as required by the Bidding Documents may result in your Bid being declared non-responsive and not considered further.

Check off each of the following as completed:

- □ Bid Proposal Form: Submitted on appropriate form, filled out legibly and completely. Failure to fill in any of the blanks shall be grounds for setting aside bid as non-responsive.
- □ Bid is submitted in a sealed opaque envelope, identified with the following:
 - ° ITB Name and Number
 - ° Bidder's Name
 - ° Bidder's Address

Deadlines

Questions must be submitted in writing to mmerin@spokaneairports.net and are due no later than 2:00 PM on Tuesday, April 30, 2024.	
Answers to questions will be provided by email no later than 5:00 PM on Wednesday, May 01, 2024.	

Sealed bids must be received no later than Monday, May 6, 2024 to the Airport Administration office, 9000 West Airport Drive, Suite 204, Spokane, WA 99224.

END OF BIDDERS CHECKLIST

	BID PROPOSAL FORM
1.01 TO:	Spokane Airports Board
	9000 W. Airport Drive, # 204
	Spokane, Washington 99224
1.02 FOR:	Spokane International Airport
1.03 DATE:	(Bidder to enter date)

1.04 SUBMITTED BY: (Bidder to enter name and address)

A. Bidder's Full Name & Address

1.05 PRE-BID CONFERENCE – Not Applicable

1.06 CERTIFICATIONS BY BIDDER

A. The undersigned hereby declares and certifies that the only parties interested in this proposal are named herein and that this proposal is made without collusion with any other person, firm, or corporation. The undersigned further certifies that no member, officer, or agent of OWNER'S has a direct or indirect financial interest in this proposal.

1.07 OFFER

A. Having examined all matters referred to in the Bidding Documents, including the Instruction to Bidders, Scope of Work, for the above-mentioned project, we, the undersigned, hereby offer to enter a Contract to provide the product specified at the following unit price, including delivery charges, installation charges and Washington State Sales Tax for the amount calculated as follows:

Basic Bid Schedule					
Description	Estimated Quantity *	U	nit Price	Total Price	
Unit Price Glycol Recovery Vehicle.	2	\$		\$	
Washington State Sales Tax (9	\$				
Total Bid (Subtotal + WSST)	\$				

*The Airport reserves the right to change the Estimated Quantity at its discretion.

1.08 SUBCONTRACTOR LIST – Not Applicable

1.09 ACCEPTANCE

A. This offer shall be open to acceptance and irrevocable for <u>sixty (60) calendar days</u> from the bid closing date.

- B. If this bid is accepted by Owner within the time period stated above, we will:
 - 1. Execute the Agreement within <u>fourteen (14) calendar days</u> of receipt of Notice of Intent to Award, unless otherwise identified.
- C. By submitting and signing this Bid Form, we certify that we comply with the conditions of the Bidding Documents, including the Instruction to Bidders.

1.10 CONTRACT TIME AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

- A. If this Bid is accepted, we will deliver the Glycol Recovery Vehicles as follows:
 - 1st vehicle shall be delivered ninety (90) days from Notice to Proceed date.
 - 2nd vehicle, if required, shall be delivered one hundred eighty (180) days from Notice to Proceed date.
- B. If the work is not substantially complete within delivery time, Liquidated Damages will be assessed in the amount of \$250.00 per calendar day beyond the delivery dates listed above.

1.11 ADDENDA

A. The following Addenda have been received. The modifications to the Bid Documents noted below have been considered and all costs are included in the Bid Sum.

1. Addendum#	Dated	. 2. Addendum#	Dated	
--------------	-------	----------------	-------	--

3. Addendum#____ Dated_____. 4. Addendum#____ Dated_____.

1.12 BID FORM SIGNATURE(S)

- A. Undersigned designated his office of record to which notices may be mailed or faxed is the same as the address listed below:
 - 1. Company:________(Legal Entity Name)
 - 2. Submitted by: ______ (Original Signature)
 - 3. Print name and title:
 - 4. Address:
 5. Telephone:
 - 6. Fax:_____
 - 7. E-mail:_____

1.13 If the Bid is a joint venture or partnership, add additional forms of execution for each member of the joint venture in the appropriate form or forms as above.

PURCHASE CONTRACT

GLYCOL RECOVERY VEHICLES, CONTRACT # 24-41-1827

THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into this ______day of ______, 2024, by and between SPOKANE AIRPORT, by and through its AIRPORT BOARD, created pursuant to the provisions of Section 14.08.200 of the Revised Code of Washington, as a joint operation of the City and County of Spokane, municipal corporations of the State of Washington, hereinafter referred to as "Airport," and ______, a Corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of ______, hereinafter referred to as "Vendor."

The Vendor, in consideration of the sum to be paid by the Airport and of the covenants and agreements herein contained, hereby agrees at vendors own proper cost and expense, to complete all work, furnish all materials, tools, labor, appliances, equipment, machinery, and appurtenances for Glycol Recovery Vehicles, Contract # 24-41-1827, to the extent of the Bid Proposal made by the Vendor, dated ______, 2024, all in full compliance with the Bidding Documents referred to herein.

The BIDDING DOCUMENTS, including the signed copy of the BID PROPOSAL, the SCOPE OF WORK, the INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS, the Special PROVISIONS, and Addendum(s) #_____ all entitled Glycol Recovery Vehicles, Contract # 24-41-1827, are hereby referred to and by reference made a part of this Contract as fully and completely as if the same were fully set forth herein and are mutually cooperative therewith.

In consideration of the performance of the work as set forth in these Bidding Documents, the Airport agrees to pay to the Vendor \$______, which includes Washington State Sales Tax. Other adjustments shall be made in accordance with the Bidding Documents or as otherwise herein provided. The Airport agrees to make such payments in the manner and at the times provided in the Bidding Documents.

The Vendor agrees to provide Glycol Recovery Vehicles within the time specified herein and to accept as full payment hereunder the amounts computed as determined by the Bidding Documents and based upon the said Bid Proposal.

The Vendor agrees to remedy all defects appearing in the work or developing in the materials furnished and the workmanship performed under this Contract for one year following acceptance of the product and installation, and further agrees to indemnify and save the Airport harmless from any costs encountered in remedying such defects.

It is agreed that the time for completion of the Contract shall be ninety (90) calendar days per unit from the Notice to Proceed date. Liquidated Damages will be assessed in the amount of \$250.00 per calendar day beyond the delivery deadlines listed in the bidding documents.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, witness the signature of the parties hereto the day and year first above written:

SPOKANE AIRPORT BOARD:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:	Choose an item.	By:	
	Choose an item.		General Counsel
Click	or tap here to enter text.:		
Sigr	nature:		
	Title:		

GENERAL CIVIL RIGHTS PROVISIONS

The Contractor agrees that it will comply with pertinent statutes, Executive Orders and such rules as are promulgated to ensure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability be excluded from participating in any activity conducted with or benefiting from Federal assistance.

This provision binds the contractors from the bid solicitation period through the completion of the contract. This provision is in addition to that required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

CIVIL RIGHTS – TITLE VI ASSURANCES COMPLIANCE WITH NONDISCRIMINATION REQUIREMENTS

During the performance of this contract, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor"), agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Regulations: The Contractor (hereinafter includes consultants) will comply with the Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, as they may be amended from time to time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract.

2. Non-discrimination: The Contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The Contractor will not participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, including employment practices when the contract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR part 21.

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all solicitations, either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Contractor for work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the Contractor of the contractor's obligations under this contract and the Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.

4. Information and Reports: The Contractor will provide all information and reports required by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities and instructions. Where any information required of a Contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish the information, the Contractor will so certify to the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration to be pertinent with such set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of a contractor's noncompliance with the Nondiscrimination provisions of this contract, the sponsor will impose such contract sanctions as it or the Federal Aviation Administration may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:

- a. Withholding payments to the contractor under the contract until the Contractor complies; and/or
- b. Cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part.

6. Incorporation of Provisions: The Contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs one through six in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto. The Contractor will take action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, that if the Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of such direction, the Contractor may request the sponsor to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the sponsor. In addition, the Contractor may request the United States.

TITLE VI LIST OF PERTINENT NONDISCRIMINATION ACTS AND AUTHORITIES

During the performance of this contract, the Contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor") agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes and authorities; including but not limited to:

- Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC § 2000d *et seq.*, 78 stat. 252), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin);
- 49 CFR part 21 (Non-discrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation—Effectuation of Title VI of The Civil Rights Act of 1964);
- The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 USC § 4601) (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);
- Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 USC § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR part 27;
- The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 USC § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of age);
- Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as amended (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);
- The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 (PL 100-209) (broadened the scope, coverage and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms "programs or activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not);
- Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 USC §§ 12131 – 12189) as implemented by U.S. Department of Transportation regulations at 49 CFR parts 37 and 38;
- The Federal Aviation Administration's Non-discrimination statute (49 USC § 47123) (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);
- Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures non-discrimination against minority populations by

discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;

- Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100);
- Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 USC 1681 et seq).

END OF GENERAL CIVIL RIGHTS PROVISIONS

SUMMARY OF WORK

Part 1 - PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Project Identification: SIA ITB # 24-41-1827 Glycol Recovery Vehicles

Location: Spokane International Airport (SIA) Owner: Spokane Airport Board 9000 W Airport Drive #204 Spokane, WA 99224

The vendor shall supply the Spokane Airport Board with one (1) to two (2) Glycol Recovery Vehicles according to the Bidding Documents.

Part 2 - Special Conditions

Delivery of the Glycol Recovery Vehicles is required as follows:

1st vehicle shall be delivered ninety (90) days from the contract award date.

• 2nd vehicle shall be delivered one hundred eighty (180) days from the contract award date, if a second vehicle is ordered.

The Glycol Recovery Vehicle(s) will be delivered as specified, in ready to work condition, to Spokane International Airport, Airfield Maintenance Department, 8008 W. Aviation Ave, Spokane, WA 99224. The Spokane Airport Board will issue payment within thirty (30) days of the acceptance date of each vehicle.

Timely delivery of the vehicles is essential to the Spokane Airport Board and time limits stated in the Bidding Documents are of the essence. Liquidated damages will be assessed in the amount of \$250.00 per calendar day for each day beyond the delivery dates listed above that the vehicles remain undelivered in a satisfactory manner. Assessment of liquidated damages shall not release the Vendor from any further obligations or liabilities pursuant to the Bidding Documents.

Only the latest model equipment, as evidenced by the manufacturer's current published literature will be considered. Obsolete models of equipment not in production will not be accepted. Equipment shall be composed of new parts and materials. Any unit containing used parts will be rejected. All components shall be verified through their manufacturer for compliance under the specification prior to final acceptance by Spokane International Airport. In addition to the equipment herein specifically called for, all equipment cataloged by the manufacturer as standard or required by Spokane International Airport, shall be furnished with the unit. The manufacturer shall maintain spare parts in support of any equipment that may be purchased because of this solicitation for a period of not less than ten (10) years from the date of delivery.

The vendor shall guarantee in writing that for the manufacturer's warranty period, it will at its own expense and without expense to Spokane International Airport, replace all failed parts and make all repairs that may be required by reason of defective workmanship or material in any part of the assembly of the unit and associated components. The manufacturer's warranty shall be for a period not less than one (1) year from the date of first use, except those items of standard commercial design, such as engines, axles, tires, etc. These will carry the manufacturer's standard warranty, and upon notice the manufacturer and vendor shall promptly repair or replace all defective or damaged items delivered

under the contract. The manufacturer and vendor shall aid Spokane International Airport with any warranty problems which may arise from manufacturing or suppliers. The vendor may elect to have any item returned to its plant, with freight charges being the responsibility of the vendor.

Part 3 - Specifications

3.1. General Purpose

The primary function of the glycol recovery vehicle shall be to recover spent deicing fluid from areas where aircraft have undergone deicing. The vehicle shall be purpose designed for operation on airport surfaces and provide a safe and stable configuration for maneuvering about an aircraft. The unit shall be capable of collecting and hauling a minimum of 1700 gallons of recovered liquid. The vacuum unit shall be powered by an independent auxiliary diesel engine and must be capable of picking up fluids across a width of 8 feet. The unit shall be capable of distributing an emulsifying solution capable of improving glycol pickup efficiencies.

- 3.2. Minimum Chassis Specifications
 - 3.2.1. ENGINE
 - 3.2.1.1. 6 Cylinder diesel, 220 horsepower
 - 3.2.1.2. Current EPA certifications
 - 3.2.1.3. 110-volt block heater
 - 3.2.1.4. Magnetic drain plug in oil pan
 - 3.2.1.5. Lube oil cooler
 - 3.2.1.6. 18 cfm air compressor
 - 3.2.1.7. Air cleaner shall be dry type two- stage located under the engine enclosure
 - 3.2.1.8. A 12 V 160-amp (minimum) alternator with heavy duty integral regulator shall be provided
 - 3.2.2. TRANSMISSION
 - 3.2.2.1. Automatic
 - 3.2.2.2. Allison 2500 or equal
 - 3.2.2.3. Oil Cooler
 - 3.2.2.4. Spin on filters
 - 3.2.3. FRAME
 - 3.2.3.1. 80,000 psi yield
 - 3.2.4. REAR AXLE
 - 3.2.4.1. Single rear axle rated at 21,000 lb.
 - 3.2.5. FRONT AXLE
 - 3.2.5.1. 12,000 lb. capacity
 - 3.2.6. STEERING
 - 3.2.6.1. Power Steering
 - 3.2.6.2. Left side controls

- 3.2.7. BRAKES
 - 3.2.7.1. Anti-lock brakes
 - 3.2.7.2. Brakes shall be full air brakes with automatic slack adjuster
 - 3.2.7.3. Parking brake shall be provided
- 3.2.8. FUEL TANKS
 - 3.2.8.1. Fuel tank capacity shall be a minimum of 100 gallons
 - 3.2.8.2. Fuel water separator shall be provided

3.2.9. BATTERIES

- 3.2.9.1. Two (2) 12v maintenance free group 31 batteries shall be provided
- 3.2.9.2. Master load disconnect shall be provided between the battery positive buss bar and the remainder of the switched battery loads

3.2.10. CAB

- 3.2.10.1. Unit shall be cab-over type
- 3.2.10.2. Two (2) West Coast style mirrors
- 3.2.10.3. National Cush-N-Air driver seat or equivalent
- 3.2.10.4. Fixed passenger seat
- 3.2.10.5. Engine hand throttle
- 3.2.10.6. Air conditioning
- 3.2.10.7. An electrical back up alarm shall be provided
- 3.2.10.8. 3 point seat belts
- 3.2.10.9. Switches shall be illuminated
- 3.2.10.10. One (1) 10 lb. Ansul model PK10 fire extinguisher shall be mounted in the cab on the back wall near the driver seat.

3.2.11. INSTRUMENTS

- 3.2.11.1. Instrumentation and controls shall be compliant with DOT specifications
- 3.2.11.2. Speedometer
- 3.2.11.3. Tachometer
- 3.2.11.4. Engine Coolant
- 3.2.11.5. Engine oil pressure
- 3.2.11.6. Voltmeter
- 3.2.11.7. Hour meter
- 3.2.11.8. Fuel meter
- 3.2.11.9. Fuel level
- 3.2.11.10. Parking brake "on" indicator
- 3.2.11.11. High Beam indicator
- 3.2.11.12. Engine warning Lights
- 3.2.11.13. Low air pressure alarm

3.2.12. LIGHTING

- 3.2.12.1. Exterior cab lighting shall meet DOT standards
- 3.2.12.2. Clearance lights, 5 across top leading edge of cab roof, LED type
- 3.2.12.3. Red LED at rear bumper as required by DOT

- 3.2.12.4. Marker Lights shall be located at furthermost rear point of vehicle
- 3.2.12.5. Six (6) LED work lights shall be provided, two (2) located at front corners of unit, two (2) at rear corners of unit, and two (2) on pick up head.
- 3.2.12.6. Two (2) amber strobes, one (1) at front brow, one (1) at rear. Amber strobes shall provide 360-degree visibility
- 3.2.13. AUXILIARY ENGINE
 - 3.2.13.1. Heavy duty turbocharged diesel
 - 3.2.13.2. 175 hp at 2400 RPM (minimum)
 - 3.2.13.3. Shall provide power for hydraulic system and all functions of the glycol recovery system
 - 3.2.13.4. Automatic shutdown systems
 - 3.2.13.5. Fuel water separators
 - 3.2.13.6. Air cleaner
 - 3.2.13.7. Oil filters
 - 3.2.13.8. Radiator overflow tank
 - 3.2.13.9. The Auxiliary controls shall be located in the cab within sight of the operator
 - 3.2.13.10. 110 v block heater
 - 3.2.13.11. Auxiliary engine shall have roof protecting it

3.2.14. VACUUM SYSTEM

- 3.2.14.1. Vacuum shall be engaged/disengaged from inside the cab
- 3.2.14.2. Single stage centrifugal fan
- 3.2.14.3. Capable of generating 18,000 cfm at 32" negative water pressure (minimum)
- 3.2.14.4. The vacuum nozzles and pick up head shall be located at the rear of the vehicle
- 3.2.14.5. The vacuum head shall be hydraulically raised and lowered.
- 3.2.14.6. The vacuum head shall provide for an 8-foot cleaning width
- 3.2.14.7. The pick- up head shall have a position indicator and be hydraulically controlled from the cab
- 3.2.14.8. The pick-up head shall be automatically raised when the vehicle is put in reverse
- 3.2.14.9. The pick-up head shall be equipped with heavy duty wheels

3.2.15. LIQUID SEPERATION

- 3.2.15.1. Fluids collected and mixed with air shall be collected and returned to the storage tank
- 3.2.15.2. Liquid removal efficiencies shall be 99%

3.2.16. LIQUID STORAGE

- 3.2.16.1. The primary receiving tank should have a minimum capacity of 1800 gallons
- 3.2.16.2. Primary tank will be such that all liquids can be pumped from the tank and/or dumped out the back
- 3.2.16.3. A full width discharge door will be hydraulically opened and latched from outside the cab

3.2.17. HYDRAULIC PUMP OFF SYSTEM

3.2.17.1. A hydraulically driven trash pump capable of pumping 450 gallons per minute will be equipped in the storage tank and be powered by the auxiliary engine

3.2.18. EMULSIFYING SYSTEM

- 3.2.18.1. Emulsifying system shall be capable of spraying an emulsifier in front of the rear wheels of the vehicle to increase recovery efficiency.
- 3.2.18.2. A 200-gallon stainless steel tank shall be provided for emulsifying agent.
- 3.2.18.3. The emulsifying agent shall be sprayed across the 8-foot collection path at a rate of up to 21 gpm at a pump pressure of 725 psi

Part 4 - DELIVERY

- 4.1.1. The contractor shall furnish two (2) sets of the following publications:
 - 4.1.1.1. Operators Manual, including lubrication charts
 - 4.1.1.2. Parts Manual
 - 4.1.1.3. Service Manual, to include specifications and maintenance procedures
- 4.1.2. Certificate of Origin
- 4.1.3. Complete set of filters (oil, air, fuel, hydraulic, and transmission)
- 4.1.4. Three (3) sets of keys
- 4.1.5. Provide trained personnel at time of delivery to ensure proper startup/operation
- 4.1.6. Provide sufficient training for the operator to allow for safe and efficient operation